




Approved: October 4, 2012 Senate Meeting   
 

 
ACADEMIC SENATE MEETING 

MINUTES 

September 20, 2012 

3:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. 

SSV 151 

To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 Ms. Maria Clinton, Academic Senate President, called the September 20, 2012 Academic Senate 

 meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT 

 Maria Clinton, Chair 

 MaryAnne Holcomb 

 Elizabeth Sundberg 

 Cathy Overdorf 

 Dr. Kenneth Lee 

 Dr. Liette Bohler 

 Joe Watts 

 Dr. Glenn Haller 

 Pavinee Villapando 

 Dr. Zia Nisani 

 Dr. Ron Chapman 

 Ken Shafer 

 Dr. Lee Grishman 

 Michael Hancock 

 Jack Halliday 

 Ty Mettler 

 Kathy Moore 

 Terry Rezek 

 Dr. Berkeley Price 

 Elaine Tsai 

 Karen Lubick 

 

 MEMBERS ABSENT 

 Susan Knapp 

 Van Rider 

 Dr. Alexandra Schroer 

 

  

 

 GUESTS/EX-OFFICIO 

 Dr. Nancy Bednar 

 Linda Harmon 

 Carol Eastin 

 Dr. Fredy Aviles 

 Dr. Susan Lowry

2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE CHAIR 

 Ms. Maria Clinton discussed a letter from Chancellor Jack Scott, Ph.D., of June 8, 2012, 

stating the progress being made across the state with vocational course completion skills. 

 

 Ms. Maria Clinton announced the recent appointment made by the Academic Senate for 

California Community Colleges, of Mr. Van Rider to the Student Learning and Support 

committee for the 2012-2013 academic year. 

 

 Ms. Maria Clinton announced and distributed a flyer announcing the upcoming ‘At The 

Leading Edge of Space’ presentation, Thursday, September 27, 2012, 7:00 p.m. in HS 

105. Attendees at this event will encounter individuals at the leading edge of aerospace 

who are making history. 

 

 Ms. Maria Clinton, as co-chair, attended a Strategic Planning and Budget Committee 

meeting on September 19, 2012. She was displeased that committee action from a 

previous meeting was not documented; therefore processes were circumvented because 

the action was never reflected in the minutes. Dr. Nancy Bednar interjected this has been 

a significant issue in the past with regard to accreditation. Ms. Clinton reiterated the 

importance of proper documentation of meetings. 



Approved: October 4, 2012 Senate Meeting 

 

3. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 Ron Chapman, Instructor of Sociology, read the following statement in regard to Dr. 

Nancy  Bednar’s comments last week in relation to Academic Ranking: 

 

  1)  Academic Rank is not awarded in a specific subject area or service area. 

 

   2)  Granting of Academic Rank depends upon a self-initiated petition rather than   

        nomination by discipline faculty and approval of the full Senate following review  

        of qualifications. 

 

   3)  The candidate’s particular met-criteria of eligibility are not known to the full Senate  

         when called upon to approve; i.e. review is clerical and application is not made  

         available in Senate packet. 

 

   4)  Eligibility criteria overemphasizes eminence or community service at the expense of  

       college credits, professional certification by the state, earned Doctorates and seniority,  

       and national or international eminence. i.e., 18, 27, 36 hours of additional training or  

       peer-reviewed publications, musical performances, exhibition, scholarly presentations,  

       major projects impacting AVC students, and Academic Governance. 

 

   5)  Academic Ranking is unlimited. How many full-professors of each discipline are  

       necessary or desirable? 

 

   6)  Academic Ranking entails honor without defined responsibilities -- signing off for  

       discipline on textbook- curriculum. 

 

  7)  It is not revocable. 

 

 Dr. Susan Lowry announced the mobilization of a voter registration drive and ‘Get Out 

the Vote’ campaign to support Proposition 30. She advised anyone interested in 

participating to see Dr. Lowry, Dr. Nancy Bednar or Scott Memmer. 

 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 a. September 6, 2012 

 A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the September 6, 2012 Academic 

 Senate Meeting.  

 Motion carried. 

 

5. REPORTS (5 minutes maximum) 

 a. Antelope Valley College (AVC) Basic Skills Quest Initiative - Agnes Jose-Eguaras 

Ms. Agnes Jose-Eguaras gave a presentation and overview of the 2011-12 AVC Quest for 

Success program. Using a PowerPoint presentation and handouts, she outlined the committee, 

program components, resources, testing and assessments for students on waiting lists and 

various programs involved including workshops, online tutoring, mentoring, skills forums and 

symposiums. The Basic Skills Committee’s goal is to increase student retention and success, 

providing holistic structure and support to students, instructors, support services and the 

community. Support is based on data, theory, planning, dialogue and collaboration, resulting in 

effective practices. The hope is a reduction of the number of students needing Basic 

Skills/Developmental Education, creating conditions to help students be successful, and to 

compress time for students to take Basic Skills/Developmental Education courses.  

 



Approved: October 4, 2012 Senate Meeting 

Senate members participated in discussion of Basic Skills Progress Tracker Report that displays 

all students in cohort from Fall 2008 through Spring 2012. 

 

b. Program Review – Carol Eastin 

 Ms. Carol Eastin, Chair, Program Review Committee, presented the following report: 

 

  2011: Several 2011 reports were outstanding last May but most have been received.  All  

  programs are current with Program Review with the exception of Enrollment Services  

  who has not submitted an annual update report for 2011.  

  

  2012: Seven programs are conducting comprehensive self-studies for Program Review:  

  Auxiliary Services, Business Services, CalWORKs, Institutional Advancement and  

  Foundation, Office for Students with Disabilities, Office of the Superintendent/President,  

  Veterans Affairs. Twenty-two (22) programs (remaining district) will write annual  

  update reports in WEAVE Online. All comprehensive and annual reports are due October 

  31. Writing the 2012 Annual Update Report handout was discussed. 

 

 c. Student Learning Outcomes – Dr. Fredy Aviles 

Dr. Fredy Aviles, Chair, Student Learning Outcomes (SLO) committee, presented the following 

report: 

 

 Welcome Back Workshop: SLO committee members gave presentations to specific 

divisions/areas on SLO and PLO related information, and allowed faculty/staff time to 

collaborate on action plans. According to presenters, with a few minor exceptions, the 

event was a success. 

 Reviewed and approved SLO’s for new courses: HD 102, Geol 102L and SOC 200 

 (revision). 

 Reviewed SLO committee member responsibilities. 

 Provided WEAVE training for committee members who attended the 8/27/12 SLO 

 committee meeting. 

 Discussed SLO/PLO revision process. The final version is yet to be voted on. 

 Provided FPD flex entitled “SLOs/PLOs: Cleaning Up Your Data.” The event was not 

 well-attended but engaged attendees in a lively discussion. The event also provided 

 guidance on proper SLO/PLO assessment and practices. Including the presenter, eight (8) 

 faculty members were in attendance. 

 

Dr. Aviles reminded members that PLOs and SLOs are required before AP&P takes action on 

them. 

 

d. Legislative – Dr. Glenn Haller 

  Dr. Glen Haller gave the following Legislative report: 

 

  SB1402 has been signed by the governor. The bill extends the CCC Economic and  

  Workforce Development (EWD) Program until 2018 and the intent of the   

  Legislature in reauthorizing the CCC Economic Workforce Development Program  

  that the program work in coordination with California’s other workforce and  

  economic development programs and activities, as specified.  The program was set  

  to ‘sunset’ in 2013. 

 

  The big bill of the year, 1456 - the Seymour-Campbell Student Success Act of 2012,  

  is still sitting on the Governor's desk.  This bill establishes new requirements to be  

  met by low-income students in order to receive a Board of Governor’s (BOG) fee  

  waiver  at the California Community Colleges, and revises and establishes new  

  requirements to be met in order for community college districts to receive   

  matriculation funds. Basically this is the main bill that came from the Success Task  

  Force (SSTF), required by SB 1143.  One segment requires the BOG to establish an  



Approved: October 4, 2012 Senate Meeting 

  implementation period for the Student Success and Support Program, to be phased  

  in as resources become available.  

 

  Finally as a cost-cutting measure, the Antelope Valley Community College District  

  (AVCCD) Board of Trustees has chosen not to continue its contract with the   

  McCallum Group - our legislative lobbyists. 

 
6. ACTION ITEMS 

 a. Distance Education and Technology Committee – Blackboard Identification Statement 

 A motion was made and seconded to approve the Blackboard Identification Statement.  

 

Dr. Nancy Bednar, Chair, Distance Education and Technology Committee presented a 

Blackboard Identification Statement for Senate approval. The proposed identification 

statement is modeled after language used by College of the Canyons, and deemed in 

compliance with the United States Department of Education. The proposed login will affirm 

user validity, making users and/or violators subject to guidelines and disciplinary actions 

stated in the Antelope Valley College Student Handbook. The statement is as follows: 

 

Through the entry of my username and password I affirm that I am the student who 

enrolled in this course. Furthermore, I affirm that I understand and agree to follow the 

regulations regarding academic integrity and the use of student data as described in the 

Student Handbook (BP 5500) that governs student rights and responsibilities.  Failure 

to abide by the regulations may result in disciplinary action up to and including 

expulsion from the college. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

7.  DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. Feedback – Emergency Evacuation Drill 

 Ms. Maria Clinton enlisted members for division feedback regarding the best time to hold an   

   Emergency Evacuation Drill. Recommendations included the following: 

 

 During busiest time 

 During peak time – twice annually 

 Hold first drill for faculty & staff during Welcome Back 

 After division meetings when students are present 

 Anytime when students are present – during labs 

 Not Friday at 4:00 p.m. 

 Friday at 4:00 p.m. 

 Monday/Wednesday one semester; Tuesday/Thursday next semester 

 One daytime/one evening 

 Train faculty first – all faculty must be aware of date and time 

 

b. Election – Adjunct Faculty Seat Vacancy 

 Ms. Clinton announced the candidates for the upcoming election to fill the Adjunct Faculty         

Seat Vacancy. The election will be held via SurveyMonkey. Candidates are as follows: 

 

 Wendy Carter, Nursing 

 Dr. Stephen B. Young, Business, Computer Studies & Economic Development 

 Larry Veres, Business, Computer Studies & Economic Development 

 Timothy Lynskey, Technical Education 

 

 

 

 



Approved: October 4, 2012 Senate Meeting 

 

8. SENATE ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS 

 a. Appointments 

     A motion was made and seconded to approve the following two (2) appointments: 

 Academic Ranking 

o Van Rider, Assistant Professor 

 

 Tenure Review Committee 

o Susan Snyder 

 

 Motion carried. 

 

b. Announcements 

 2012 Fall Plenary Session - November 8-10, 2012,  Irvine Marriott 

 Accreditation Institute – February 8, 2013, San Jose Doubletree 

 Vocational Education Leadership Institute – March 20-22, 2013, Oakland Marriott 

 2013 Spring Plenary Session – April 18-20, 2013, Westin San Francisco Airport 

 Faculty Leadership Institute – June 13-15, 2013, Sheraton Grand, Sacramento 

Curriculum Institute – July 11-13, 2013, Sheraton Park Hotel, Anaheim Resort 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

A motion was made and seconded to adjourn the September 20, 2012 Academic Senate Meeting at 

4:16 p.m. 

Motion carried. 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

Antelope Valley College prohibits discrimination and harassment based on sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, age, 

disability, marital status, sexual orientation, cancer-related medical condition, or genetic predisposition.  Upon request, we will consider 
reasonable accommodation to permit individuals with protected disabilities to (1) complete the employment or admission process, (b) perform 

essential job functions, (c) enjoy benefits and privileges of similarly-situated individuals without disabilities, and (d) participate in instruction, 

programs, services, activities, or events. 








































